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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION
Background information

The Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd is a company registered under the
Company’s Act CAP 486 currently operating Reg Cert No. 5691 and carrying out the
Commercial business of the defunct Pyrethrum Board of Kenya in line with the provision of

section 3 (i) of the first schedule on transition provision of Agriculture and Food Authority Act
of 2013.

“Every former institution which immediately before the commencement of this
Act carried out any commercial activity with the objective of making profit shall
within twelve months of the appointed day, and in accordance with the relevant
procedures and practice applicable, transform into a company and be registered
as a company under the Companies Act (Cap. 486) so as to enable the former
institution carry on the commercial activity”

This means Pyrethrum Board of Kenya was to transform into a company registered under the
Companies Act Cap 486 within twelve months of the commencement of the AFA Act 2013.
However, AFA operated the former institution as it’s directorate from 2014 to 2016 when they
adopted the existing company, PPCK to be the successor of PBK.

At the Cabinet level the Company is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Ministry of
Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries and Cooperatives, who is responsible for the general policy
and strategic direction of the Company. The institution is also subject to the provisions of the
State Corporations Act (Cap 446) Laws of Kenya.

PPCK is domiciled in Kenya with nineteen Pyrethrum growing counties namely Nakuru,

Kiambu, Nyandarua, Nyeri, Laikipia, Meru, Embu, Baringo, Elgeyo Marakwet, West Pokot,
Trans-Nzoia, Bungoma (Mt. Elgon), Uasin Gishu, Nandi, Kericho, Bomet, Narok, Nyamira and

Kisii.
Principal Activities

The principal activity of PPCK is to produce, process and market Pyrethrum and pyrethrum
products, conduct scientific & agronomic research, promote, and facilitate production of high
yielding planting material & quality certified Pyrethrum seeds.
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DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors who served the entity during the year under review

were as follows:

NAME DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 | Eng. George Wachira, MBS Chairman 28% March 2021
2 | Ms. Mary Moraa Ontiri Ag. Chief Executive Officer 9t June 2021

3 | Mr. Jenaro Guantai Ithinji Director 28% March 2021
4 | Ms. Stella Wanjiru W.Karanja Director 28t March 2021
5 | Mr. Simeon K. Chebwai Director 28t March 2021
6 | Dr. Lawrence Munene Ngari Director 28% March 2021
7 | Ms. Nasra G. Kochale Director 284 March 2021

NB. CPA Joseph Waweru Muigai served as Ag. Chief Executive Officer from 17% October 2019

to 9h June 2021.

REGISTERED OFFICE

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd. Hgs

Industrial Area Nakuru
Pareto Road

P.O. BOX 420 - 20100
NAKURU, KENYA

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya

Industrial Area Nakuru
Pareto Road

P.O. BOX 420 - 20100
NAKURU, KENYA.

CORPORATE CONTACTS
Telephone: +254 2211567 /82

E-mail: md@pyrethrum.co.ke
CORPORATE BANKERS

Kenya Commercial Bank
Menengai Crater Branch
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Loncom House Ground Floor
P.O. BOX 15923 - 20100
NAKURU, KENYA

Telephone: +254- (051) 22216412

www.kcbbankgroup.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Auditor General

Office of The Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084 - GPO 00100
NAIROBI, KENYA

PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISOR
The Attorney General '

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112, City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KENYA
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman of the Board

Eng. George Wachira, MBS
Date of Birth: 20 May 1948

Eng. George Wachira has over 34 years in Engineering
and consultancy in Public and private sector. He holds a
BSc. in Chemical Engineering from University of Surrey
and a member of Energy Institute of Kenya. He was
awarded Moran of Order of Burning Spear (MBS) in the
year 2017 and currently the Director of the Petroleum
Focus Consultants.

Director

Mr. Jenaro G. Ithinji holds a M.Ed. in Guidance and
Counselling from Egerton University, B.Ed. Kenyatta
University. He is currently a senior lead consultant-
Management, leadership and corporate governance at
African Vocational Education, Research & Consultancy
(AVERC). He is a full member of Kenya Institute of
Management.

Mr. Ithinji was appointed to PPCK Board as an
independent director and serves as the Chairperson of
Finance, HR & General Purposes Committee and also a

Mr. Jenaro Guantai Ithinji
Date of Birth: 12th December 1969 member of Technical Committee.
Director Ms. Stella Wanjiru has over 21 years of experience as an

Ms. Stella Wanjiru Karanja
Date of Birth: 10t September 1972

entrepreneur. She holds BSc Accounting degree from
United States International University, Africa (USIU-A)
and a Post Graduate Dip.Educ from University of
Nairobi.

Currently she is a Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Mustard Group of Schools and an independent Director
to the PPCK Board which she also serves as the
chairperson of the Audit Committee.

viii
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Mr. Simeon K. Chebwai Boen, holds Diploma in Civil
Engineering Kenya Polytechnic, Craft Certificate in
Building and Construction, RVIST Certificate in Project
Management and Governance at Ms-Training for
Development and Cooperation Usariver, Arusha,
Tanzania. He has over 25 years’ experience in civil
engineering field in both public and private sector.

He was appointed to the PPCK Board as an independent
director and serves as the Chairperson of the Technical
Committee and a member in the Finance, HR and

Mr. Simeon K. Chebwai Boen.

Date of Birth: 17* May 1962 General Purposes Committee.
Director Dr. Lawrence Munene Ngari has over 35years experience

in public service and private sector administration holds
a Doctorate degree in Entrepreneurship from University
of California Central. He holds a Masters of Business
Administration (Entrepreneurship) at Central Creek
University, Masters of Science degree (MSc. Life Sciences)
University of Indore, India, Bachelor of Science Biology,
Chemistry University of Jabalpur, India.
Currently he is an independent director to the PPCK
Board and a member of the Audit Committee.

Dr. Lawrence Munene Ngari
Date of Birth: 7 June 1959
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Director

Ms. Nasra G. Kochale
Date of Birth 4% April 1992,

Ms. Nasra G. Kochale holds BSc in Public Relation and
Diplomacy from Mount Kenya University and Bachelor
of Business Administration from Kenya Methodist
University. She is a professional banker and served in the
National steering committee on revival and revitalisation
of cotton and pyrethrum value chains.

She is an independent director of PPCK Board and a
member of Finance, HR & General Purpose and
Technical Committees.

Ag. Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Mary Moraa Ontiri
Date of Birth 12 December 1970

Ms. Mary M Ontiri holds a Master's degree in Plant
Breeding from Egerton University, Bachelor of Science
degree in Agriculture and Home Economics Egerton
University. She has worked with Pyrethrum industry for
the last 29 years. She formerly worked as GM Technical
and Advisory services (PBK), Deputy Director in Miraa
Pyrethrum and Other Industrial Crops Directorate under
AFA with vast experience in Pyrethrum production,
processing and marketing.

She has undertaken Senior Management Course and
Senior Leadership Development Program at Kenya
School of Government. She serves as the Secretary to the
Board.




PYRETHRLUM PROCESSING COMPANY (OF KENYA
ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2021.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mary Moraa Ontiri
MSC (Flant Breeding)
BSc (Agriculture)
Member (PBAK)

Ag. Chief Executive Officer

RESPONSIBILITIES

Responsible for the day-to day operations of the
organization.
Charged with the responsibilities of safeguarding the

company resources as the accounting officer.

Prepare annual budgets and establish proper internal

controls.

Crop Research and
Production Manager

Ms. Caroline Imbwaga
MSC (Agronomy & Rural Dev)
BSc (Agriculture)
Member (KESAF)

Planning Coordinating and supervising crop research
and agronomic services that include tissue culture

production, seed production & nursery management

Planning coordinating and supervising crop

production and extension services

CPA Edward. O. Ochele
BBA - Finance (On-going),

CPA (K)

Member (ICPAK)

Management of company finances and budget
implementation in accordance with the PFM act of
2012 and regulation 2015.

Overseeing the operation and function of the Finance

department.
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Human Resource & Admn

I
Ms. Elizabeth A. Lubya
BCom (Human Resource Mgt)
Dip -Business Mgt
Member | IHRM

In charge of Human resource and
administration department charged with
Review & Implementation of Human resource

manual.

In charge of Payroll, Administration of
Transport, Security and Facilities.

Planni g & Strategy Manager

3

Mrs. Rosaline Chepngeno
BSc in Science

In charge of planning and strategy of the
company.

Preparation of the company annual report and
performance contracting

Mr. Joel Atuti Nyachiro
BA In Economics & Statistics
Diploma in Production Mgt

Carry out systems audit in all PPCK Functions.
Safeguarding of PPCK Assets.

Follow-up on External auditor's management
letter and ensure that response is done within
the set timeline.

Carry out Risk assessment within PPCK
functions and then recommend to management

the mitigation measures.
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Production Cnntml & Quality
¢ Manage and supervise flower processing

¢ Manage and supervise laboratory analytical
work

e Ensure production of quality products

MR. Vincent Ouma
Dip in Applied Chemisiry
Product Dwelupmnt &

¢ Managing and  Coordinating  product
development projects

e Development strategy for promotion of new
products

e Marketing Pyrethrum and Pyrethrum Products

Mrs. Winfred Waweru
MBA (Strategic Mgt)

BCom (Marketing Option)
Diploma in Business Mgt

« Managing overall direction, coordination and
evaluation of procurement for the organization

» Performing all procurement activities including
pre-qualification, negotiating supplier
agreements, preparation of contracts and tender

Mr. Peter Kaumbuthu PICINGETAEIR

MSc. (Procurement). » Developing strong relationships with suppliers

i ey ping g PP

Diploma in Procurement and Supplies. and strategic suppl artners to improve

Mfmbﬂ , gac PPy P P
business
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya (PPCK) I am

pleased to present the 2020/21 annual financial statement. It is important to note that Financial
Reports forms the backbone for financial planning, analysis, benchmarking and decision
making of the Company. Therefore, quality accounting and reporting frameworks are essential
in policy making, and in strategic decision making. The overall performance of the Company is
in line with our strategic focus.

The Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd is a Company registered under the
Company’s Act CAP 486 Laws of Kenya carrying out the commercial functions of the defunct
Pyrethrum Board of Kenya in line with the provisions of Section 3 (i) of the first schedule on
transition clause of Agriculture and Food Authority (AFA) Act 2013.

The Government of Kenya appointed a new Chairman and Board of Directors with effect from
28" March 2021 through gazette notice No. 2753 of 26t March 2021 and a new Ag. Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 9% June 2021. The new Board inherited a huge historical
financial burden from the defunct Pyrethrum Board of Kenya brought about by financial
constraints including and not limited to actuarial deficit from the underfunding of the wound-
up entity of Pyrethrum Board of Kenya Staff Superannuation Scheme in the sum of Kshs 2.02B
inclusive of interest, unremitted Sacco dues amounting to Kshs 31M, unremitted payee of Kshs
200M, land rates and rent amounting to Kshs 83M, AFA support Kshs. 223M, Sugar Directorate
Kshs. 41M, Tea Directorate 16M, among other creditors.

Pyrethrum influences various aspects of the economy by providing employment, contributes to
public health sector, crop protection and animal health and supports livelihoods of many
citizens. The subsector agricultural reforms have played a key role in revitalization of the
Company through a liberalized economy. Farmers are now able to deliver the crop under a
competitive environment and hence earn value for money. The crop is adapted to an altitude
range of 1700 to 2900m above sea level and is grown in nineteen Counties namely Nakuru,
Kiambu, Nyandarua, Nyeri, Laikipia, Meru, Embu, Baringo, Elgeyo Marakwet, West Pokot,
Trans Nzoia, Bungoma (Mt. Elgon) Uasin Gishu, Nandi, Kericho, Bomet, Narok Nyamira and

Kisii. The Company lays emphasis on the need to develop the crop through increase in flower
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production, delivery of dry flowers to the factory, prompt payment of farmers and recognizing
the farmer as key in the revival strategy. Going forward the Board shall look into the possibility
of motivation of farmers through reintroduction of annual pyrethrum bonuses to farmers upon
full recovery and realization of surpluses. This is intended to reinstate farmers confidence
which shall in turn lead to increase in production and ultimate sustenance of farmer's needs.
The subsector is a national asset for social economic development and supports various
communities who for a long time have continued to depend on the crop for their livelihoods.
PPCK strategic plan focuses mainly on pyrethrum research, planning and information
management, corporate governance and institutional framework; securing, protection and
revamping of infrastructure, community livelihood improvement; and partnership and
collaboration for resource mobilization and capacity development. This will inspire social
transformation with regard to the Kenya's economy. Key achievements of the Company include
the ongoing development of planting materials, verification of seedling distribution leading to
increase in pyrethrum production and, rehabilitation of degraded pyrethrum nurseries in the
growing areas, among others.

The Board is therefore committed in ensuring prudent utilization of resources towards
sustainable business of pyrethrum as a driving factor in the achievement of the Big Four
Agenda. I thank the National Government through the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock,
Fisheries & Cooperatives for their continued support in policy matters, Board of Directors for
adding value to the organization, the management and staff for implementing organizational
strategies on a day-to-day basis in a diligent and prudent manner. I also thank our valuable
pyrethrum growers for the support towards revival of the industry as well as all the
stakeholders for their good will.

Finally, I wish to assure you that the Board continues to be guided by the principles of good
governance. Your Board recognizes its collective responsibility to ensure that you, the growers,
achieve above average sustainable returns on your efforts year after year.

ENG. GEORGE WACHIRA DATE %ﬁﬁ 2022

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd (PPCK) is committed in fulfilling its
mandate of production, processing, marketing of pyrethrum and other pyrethrum products,
conduct scientific and agronomic research, promote and facilitate production of high yielding
planting materials and quality certified pyrethrum seeds for the economic benefit of farmers
and the country in foreign exchange earnings.

In the FY 2020/21, the Company undertook various initiatives towards revival such as
distribution of planting materials to farmers, increase in advance payment from Kshs 100 to
Kshs 200 per kilo of dry pyrethrum flowers, collaborative ventures with the various pyrethrum
growing Counties in the Country, initiation of a strategic business development plan, cleared all
the outstanding growers’ arrears and employed alternative dispute resolution mechanism in
settlement of matters outside court. This has had an impact in revival strategy of the Company
and enhanced confidence from various stakeholders. The Company has also forged close
working relationship with the National Government in securing the interests of the institution
through provision of the requisite budgetary allocation and other infrastructural support.
PPCK developed and implemented housing policy, ensured equitable distribution of planting .
materials and verification mechanism for accountability, rehabilitation of degraded pyrethrum
nurseries for generation of planting materials and put in place a corresponding monitoring
framework aimed at putting checks and balances in the seedling distribution programs.

As the Ag. Chief Executive Officer, | have provided leadership and guidance to ensure that the
Company meets its performance targets, employed best business practices in the pyrethrum
fraternity by engaging in prudent and tangible deliverables and harness farmers goodwill in
protection and safeguarding their interests. I will also ensure inclusivity of all stakeholders in
sustainable development programs for employment, wealth creation, engagement of a
participatory business approach and jurisprudence in management.

I am pleased to present the financial results of PPCK for the financial period ended on 30th June
2021. The Company received Kshs 132M for recurrent expenditure and Ksh. 65M as
development allocation and a further stimulus package of Kshs 200M from the National

xvi
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Government. However, the amount received for development is far below the requirement of
the Company. In the financial year under review, the Company continued to deliver on its
mandate despite the challenges related to inadequate budgetary allocation. The Company
hopes to raise enough resources with the support of the Parent Ministry, the National Treasury
and other internally generated revenues.

While PCCK grapples with a far-reaching and comprehensive approach to sustainable
management of the Company, we are aware that we need to embrace and strmgﬂﬁ:n the
concept of value addition for generation of improved revenue and articulate our understanding
of the critical role the industry plays in the economic wellbeing of the farmer. We shall also
strive to provide interactive session so as to play part in corporate social responsibility.

In conclusion, I appreciate the support from the Parent Ministry and guidance of the Board
during the year under review. I am grateful for the continued confidence of my management
team as well as my fellow staff members and hope the same will continue as the Company

Trecovers.

MARY MORAA ONTIRI DATE & rfﬂ‘[ g0 b

Ag. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY

2020/21

PPCK has four strategic pillars/themes /issues and objectives within the current Strategic Plan
for the FY 2020-FY 2021 These strategic pillars/issues are as follows:

1. Boost agricultural growth and productivity through

2. Manufacturing
3. Revenue generation

4. Implementation of Pyrethrum Industry Recovery project
PPCK develops its annual work plans based on the above four pillars /Themes/Issues.

Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly

basis. The Company achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2020/21 period for its four

strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Strategic | Objective Key Activities Achievements

Pillary/Th Performance

eme Indicators

[Issues

Vision Boost Production Distribution | Distribution of 53M seedlings against a

1 and
ﬁgﬁhip :]grg;ﬂ“t: istribution of | of seedlings | target of 3.73M in Central and South Rift
projects | and high-quality | and clonal | regions, 436,279 of clonal materials in South
ft;“d“':“" materials materials | Rift region and raised & distributed 300,000
through seedlings in Nyanza region

Production | Production of 426,665pcs of tissue culture
ot Hquahty plantlets from own and contracted labs
tissue against a target of 550,000
culture
plantlets
Increase Established  additional = 535acres  of
pyrethrum .
acreage pyrethrum crop against a target of 200
Increase Established 13acres of seed fields against a
seed fields . .
i target of 50 and 18acres of nurseries against
nurseries a target of 50. Carried out bulking of
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materials in three (3) sites namely Limuru,
Keroka and Molo in preparation for the NTP
in line with KEPHIS guidelines
Production |Produced 1,202 kg of seed (342kg of
gf l'urghl -see d processed and 860kg of unprocessed seed)
against a target of 300
Compliance | Contracting | Contracted 1,038 new growers against a
ith Wers
:}:ret]-lrum o o target of 300 attributed to joint pyrethrum
regulations campaign between the national government,
Counties and other stakeholders
No of | Collaboratio | Collaboration with ASDSP, AFA, Nakuru,
Collaboration | n with : ; . T
artitritise National Kericho, Nyamira, Baringo, Laikipia, Kisii
Governmen |and West Pokot in crop promotion and
b g expansion campaign
and other -
stakeholder | The Company further initiated collaboration
¢ activities and signed MOU with Egerton
University
Compliance Establishme | Establishment and management of two (2)
with nt and ] .
pyrethrum ki seed fields at Tetu and Ngongongeri.
seedstandards | ¢ of  geed | Facilitation of inspection of seed sites by
fields and
R AFA and KEPHIS and payment of plant
breeders’ rights
Maintenanc | Maintained plant breeder's rights of the
e of plant o
breede r’F; twenty-three (23) pyrethrum varieties and
rights paid annual breeder’s rights fees to KEPHIS
Fully complied with agronomic
practices in seed sowing, seed
harvesting, nursery management and
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] flower handling in Limuru, Molo, Tetu
and Ngongongeri seed fields
Economic | Manufact | Processing of | Increase Achieved 60.764MT of dry flowers out of
Pillar uring dry flowers to | purchase of . ;
Big 4 produce drs fowers which 50.882MT was processed which
Agenda pyrethrum yielded 1,555kg of crude extract (OR)
products

at 30.89% pyrethrin content. Pale output was
1,052kg at 25.43%. 500kg of OR was allocated
for formulation of end use products.

This was a notable increase in flower
deliveries by 52% when compared to 40MT
achieved in FY 2019/20. This is attributed to
monthly payment of growers, settling of
outstanding growers’ arrears, payment of
Ksh 200/kg (2020/21) up from 150/kg
(2019/20) as advance for flower deliveries
and payment of the balance upon analysis of
pyrethrin content. These are efforts the
Company has put in place to win grower
confidence. The processing RUN was of dry
flowers with average pys content of 1.289%
on 17t May to 16t June, 2021 which yielded
1,555kg of crude extract (OR)

Analysed 1,516 growers’ samples within
37hours on delivery to labs. And 37 samples
from external customers enabling PPCK to
generate revenue

Achieved 71.61% extraction efficiency
Achieved 80.60% refinery efficiency
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Economic | Revenue | Increase Generate Achieved Ksh 44292M as from sale of
Pillar eneratio | revenue from | revenue . ¢
E own source of | from sale of technical products against a target of Ksh
e pyrethrum- | 81M. Compared to Ksh 3.9M achieved in FY
based 2019/20. This is attributed to investment in
products
value addition.
Implemen | Absorption of | GOK Received Ksh197M against a target of Ksh 262M
tation  of | Allocated funding out of which Ksh 132M was for recurrent
m expenditure while Ksh 65M was for
Industry development. The variance is attributed to the
Rec.nwery late disbursement. The government further in its
project

commitment to revive the Pyrethrum Processing
Company of Kenya allocated an additional Ksh
200M in Quarter 4 as a stimulus to recovery
process under the Big 4 Agenda, thus total GOK
funds in FY 2020/21 being Ksh 462M for
utilization in both recurrent and development.

The allocation for purchase of low-capacity
extraction plant (5-10MT) awaits for the Board

approval before its utilization
Implemented Industry Recovery Project that
is being funded by the GOK. The

implementation level as at 30t June, 2021 is
at 20%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd is a company registered under the
Company’'s Act CAP 486 currently operating Reg Cert No. 5691 and carrying out the
Commercial business of the defunct Pyrethrum Board of Kenya in line with the provision of
section 3 (i) of the first schedule on transition provision of Agriculture and Food Authority Act

of 2013.

a) Board Composition
The Company management vests in its Board of Directors as prescribed under Company’s Act.
The composition of the Board of the Company in the year under review was as follows:

Name Membership Profession

Eng. George Wachira Board Chair Engineer

Ms. Stella Wanjiru. Board Member Finance & Accounting
Mr. Lawrence M. Ngari Board Member Entrepreneur

Mr. Bowen Chebwai Board Member Civil Engineer

Ms. Nasra G. Kochale Board Member Banking

Mr. Janaro G. Ithinji Board Member Management Consultant

Members of the Board other than ex-officio members hold office for a period of three (3) years
and are eligible for re-appointment for another term.

The Board Members represent an appropriate skill, experience, gender, diversity and
geographical mix to facilitate effective execution of the Company mandate.

b) Board Committees

The Board has delegated its mandate to the standing Committees to enable it effectively carry
out its mandate. The Committees of the Board have specific Terms of Reference and were

constituted as follows:
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(i) Technical, Research and Compliance;
(i) Audit Committee;
(iii)  Finance HR and General-Purpose Committee;

For the period under review the current Board is developing a board Charter which is subject to
review in line with changing operational environment and governance requirements.

c). Conflict of Interest

Board Members are required to disclose any conflict of interest in relation to matters that are
brought before them for determination. The Secretary to the board maintains a register of
conflicts of interest, which is updated where a conflict is declared.

d). Statement of compliance

The Board conducted its business affairs in full compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations, relevant executive orders and circulars.

e). Board Oversight

The Board is responsible for the formulation, implementation and monitoring of the Company
Strategic Plan thus providing appropriate strategic direction for the Company. The Company is
currently developing its Strategic Plan for the period July 2021 to 30% June, 2026.

The Board ensures that the Company adheres to proper corporate governance practices and is
also responsible for managing the Company risks. The Board recognizes and is committed to
delivering its responsibility to all stakeholders.

f). Board Induction and Training

The Board had not taken any Induction, training and capacity development for the period
under review as part of the training needs due to budgetary constraint and prevalence of the
covid 19. However, the same will be fully implemented in the next financial year 2021/2022.
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g) Board Evaluation
The Board will schedule its annual evaluation exercise in its work plan in consultation with the

State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC), which is expected to conduct the exercise.

h). Board Remuneration

The Board is remunerated in accordance with the approved Terms and Conditions of Service

prescribed under various Government Circulars.

i) Corporation secretary

The Current Board relatively new having been appointed in March 2021. Likewise, the
company is undergoing transition to a fully commercial entity. Consequently, the board is in
the process of addressing across the board including and not limited to recruitment and

engagement of a company secretary.

j) Separation of Roles

The role of the Board of Directors is separated from that of the Management; the office of the
Chairperson and that of the Chief Executive Officer are held by different persons;

1). Social Responsibility

Being conscious of the Company responsibility to the society, the Board of Directors is
committed to operate ethically and promote corporate social responsibility.

b) Board Attendance

A record of attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings was kept during the
period under review. The provisions of the Company’s Act, the State Corporations Act and the
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Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations pertaining to attendance and absence
from meetings have been adhered to.

Name Designation | Classification Board |Special [TC |FHG | AC
Eng. Chairman Membership r - - -
George Attendance 2/2 1/1 - - -
Wachira
Ms. Stella | Member Membership r - - r
Wanjiru. Attendance 1/2 # 2 . 3/3
Mr. Member Membership r - - g
Lawrence
M. Ngari Attendance 2/2 1/1 - = 3/3
Mr. Bowen | Member Membership r r P &
Chebwai

Attendance 2/2 1/1 3/3 | 3/3 -
Ms. Nasra | Member Membership T r r
G. Kochale Attendance 2/2 1/1 3/3 | 3/3 -
Mr. Jenaro | Member Membership r r r -
. Hevn Attendance 272 | 1/1 |33 |33 | -
Ms. Mary | CEO Membership T g r r
O. Motaa Attendance # 1/1 [3/3|3/3] 3/3

Key:

[P - This is a member of respective committee

# - No attendance in full
TC - Technical Committee
FHG -Finance Human Resource & General-Purpose committee

AC - Audit Committee
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PPCK operates two tissue culture laboratories, one in Muguga within the KEPHIS complex and
the other in Molo, which also houses two greenhouses within the KARLO complex. The Molo
Pyrethrum Nursery is in a 35-acre land Centre of Excellence managed by the PPCK. Within the
Head office PPCK operates two Laboratories, an Entomology laboratory, and a Bioassay
laboratory. PPCK has been licenced by Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service (KEPHIS) as a
registered seed merchant. Seed production, processing and sale is as per the acts governing
seed production as envisaged in the Seed and Plant Varieties Act CAP 326.

The company’'s current working processing facility has a capacity to process 25MT of dry
flowers per day. It also has a plant with processing capacity of 50MT of dry flowers per day but
has not been commissioned yet. Due to low flower deliveries of less than 200MT annually the
capacity is idle as it is being utilized for only 12% of its capacity. To ensure that flower
deliveries retain the pyrethrin content and that processing continues albeit the low availability
of pyrethrum dry flowers, the institution budgeted to purchase a smaller extraction plant,
which will process between 5-10MT/day. This machine has however not been purchased.
PPCK, as the successor of the former PBK has inherited its market intellectual property rights in
the various market segments. PPCK continues to develop both the technical and end-use
markets for the Kenya Pyrethrum Brand, to which it has registered and maintains the brand.
PPCK inherited registration in the major market segments from the defunct Pyrethrum Board of
Kenya (PBK). These include the European Market- EU-Listing., America, Asia & Africa
Meanwhile, PPCK has registrations in various African markets. It should be noted that with
certification from the Kenyan Pest Control and Products Board; it is easier to access other
African markets.

In addition to the technical grade products, PPCK has registered 8 value-added products and in
the process registering an additional 1 product. The department has also embarked on an
ambitious program to extend the labels of the already registered products and secure daughter

registrations.
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PPCK has eleven registered products namely

1 Refined Pyrethrum pale extract 50% PCPE(CR)0226
2 | Refined Pyrethrum pale extract 25% PCPB(CR)0227
3 Crude Oleo Resin25% PCPB(CR)0228
4 Superfine pyrethrum powder 1.3% PCPB(CR)0229
5 Pylarvex PCPB(CR)0910
6 Pydust PCPB(CR)0909
7 | Pymos PCPB(CR)0911
8 Pyagro PCPB(CR)1278
9 | Pynet PCPB(CR)0912
10 | Paresol PCPB(CR)1965
11 | Pareto Roach Spray PCPB(CR)1953

PUBLIC HEALTH

R

1. Paresol (asrosol for mosquite control)

2. Pareto roach spray(aerosol for
cockroach and bedbugs control)

3. Pymos [concentrate for indoor
moscuito spraying)

4. Pylarvex (larvicide)

AGRICULTURAL

1. Pyagro (for control of biting and
sucking insects e.g caterpillars, aphids,
red spider mites, whiteflies] in fruits
and vegetables

2. Pydust (grain storage)

Xxvii

TECHNICAL PRODUCTS

1. Pale extract 50%
2. Pale extract 25%
3. Dleo Resin OR 25%

Manufactured By:

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Lid

PO, Box 420, Nakuru
Tel: 051-2211567/72 | Fane: 051-2214201
Ermail: marketing@pynethoum.co ke
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Sales in PPCK have been on a downward trajectory. This is mainly attributed to low flower
production in the country. The company has been able to sell all pyrethrum extract produced
since 2001. The sales and Financial Performance for the last 5years & Challenges are as follows:

PPCK’S 5 YEARS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Processing of Dry Pyrethrum Flowers

For the year under review the company carried one process run of 51 Metric tonnes of dry
flowers. The company did not meet the set target of processing 100Metric tonnes of dry

pyrethrum flowers the shortfall has been due to; -

xxviii

DESCRIPTION 2020/2021 | 2019/2020 | 2018/2019 | 2017/2018 | 2016/2017
Income "000" "0o0" 000" "0og" "000"
Pyrethrum Product Sales 44,292 3,950 31,382 43,885 45,295
Cost of Sales (41,732) | (16956) | (30,135) | (146,210) | (187,816)
Gross Deficit 2560 | (13 006) 1,247 | (102325) | (142,521)
Rent 17,659 18,628 16,395 15,309 14,860
Farms 2,833 1,434 497 1,011 1,819
Other Income 6,363 507 951 201 1,149
Other Gains/ (losses) (42,943) |  (45447) - : :
Total Income Before Gok Grants (13518) |  (37,884) 19,090 |  (85804) | (124,693)
Government Granis 397,000 162,000 30,000 99,000 244,000
Total Income with GOK Grants 383472 | 124116 | 49,090 13196 | 119,307
Expenditure

ting Expenses (340597) | (307,217) | (276191) | (231,309) | (221,493)
Financial Costs - A -|  (@6149)|  (45,065)
Total Expenses (340,597) | (307,217) 91)
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e Attachment & Auctioning of PPCK motor vehicles due to legal cases which affected the
general operations of the company in terms of flower collection from the growers.
For the company to improve on the pyrethrum Production the following measures are being
addressed; -

* Revamping of the seed fields (Marindas, Tetu and Ngongongeri) and nurseries (Molo)
to maximise on seed production which will lead to increase in acreage under
pyrethrum.

e Prompt regular monthly payments to growers for their flowers deliveries to motivate
the growers to increase their production of the raw material.

¢ The company has embarked on growers contracting and engaging the private labs in
the multiplication of tissue culture laboratory plantlets materials to be distributed to

growers for more expansion
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The sales matrix for pyrethrum extracts for a period of 5 years is an indicator of low volume of
raw materials (Pyrethrum Flowers) delivered to the factory for processing.

A)
SALES IN MILLION
50,000 T
45,000 43,885 44,292
40,000
o 35000 31,382
< 30,000
g
= 25,000
é 20,000
T 15,000
10,000
5 000 3,950
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020,/21

Financial Years

The matrix of flower deliveries to the company from different pyrethrum growing counties.
Nakuru County is leading with the highest quantity of flowered delivered to the company and
it is followed closely with West Pokot County. From the matrix West Pokot County received
more funds in terms of payment distribution because of the high pyrethrin content.
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B)

FLOWER DELIVERIES (KGS) PER COUNTY FY 2020/21
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GOING CONCERN CHALLENGE

Without financial injection by the government the above Performance suggests a challenge on
the going concern of the company. However, the management anticipates that the government
will provide the funds necessary for the revival of the sector and for settling the liabilities of the
company. The company has great potential to operate profitably within a short period of time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya exist to transform lives. This is our purpose and the
driving force behind everything the company undertake. It's what guides us to deliver our
strategy, is founded on economic Social, Political and the Big 4 agenda. Putting the customer /
citizen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence.
Below is a brief highlight of our achievements in each pillar.

1. SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY AND PROFILE

i. REVIVAL STRATEGY
The current management has put in place various strategies for the sustainability of the

company.

a)

b)

c)

d)

Prompt payment to growers on a monthly basis for their deliveries which motivates
farmers for the value of their crop.

Availing of planting materials through multiplication of tissue culture plantlets
which gives assurance of high-quality planting materials to growers.

Maintenance & expansion of nurseries and seed fields in Molo, Marindas and Tetu.
Further 50acres for seed production is scheduled to be established in Bahati. This
will ensure more sustainable seed production in Pyrethrum Sector.

Distribution of quality clonal materials to growers which lead to crop acreage
Expansion across the 19 pyrethrum growing counties

Market linkage and maintenance & update of all market and product registrations
in both local & international markets. '
Efficient processing and sale of environmentally friendly products (technical and
value added) for sale both local and international market.

Establishing, and maintaining close relationship with Ministry of Agriculture
Livestock Fisheries & Co-operatives (MOAL&F), The National Treasury, regulators,
Counties, and other stakeholders for sustainable development.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFOMANCE
The company through its rent collection agent (Bonkam Ventures Agencies Ltd) has

engaged a waste collection company by the name Shabab Mavuno cleaning services ltd

collect and dispose of litter from the company’s estate.
Currently the company does not have in place an environmental policy but the

management is in the process of developing one.

3. EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The company is guided by the HR Policy Manual, Employment act of 2007 & Public service
manual.

Hiring of staff is done through a competitive process taking into account the gender ratio &
regional balancing and staff appraisal system is in place.

The company has complied with occupational safety and Health act of 2007 (OSHA) by
appointing the environment Health and safety committee to ensure safety and health rules
are adhered to and advice management on mitigation measures to be part in place to avoid

casers of injury and eminent risks at the work place.

a) Staff engagement
The last time the Company engaged staff through competitive process was in the year
2014 were out of four interviewees, three were male and one female. This indicates
that gender ratio is considered highly if the applicants.

b) Training needs assessment
The Company encourages staff to fill the Training Needs Assessment (TNA) forms at
the beginning of every financial year, where analysis is done on the trainings
requested and a budget is done. This helps in training staff in their specialized areas of
work. The training improves the skills of staff and motivates them more when
performing their duties.
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c)

Performance appraisal

This is a tool that is used to reward performers or sanction staff who are non-
performers. This is done on yearly basis where staff complete performance contract at
the beginning of every year. They are then appraised on half yearly basis on what they
committed to deliver at the end of the year. Analysis is done for all staff on the overall

performance.

4. MARKET PLACE PRACTICES

Responsible competition practice

i) Anti-corruption

There is an environment of integrity in PPCK through use of codes of conduct, which
employees are given upon engagement to ensure honest performance. There exists a
Corruption Prevention Committee which comprises of Heads of department and an
Integrity Assurance Officers (IAOs) committee drawn from across the establishment.
They have conducted PPCK risk assessment and put in place a risk mitigation Plan.
The organization is in the process of developing opérating standards and procedures

to ensure customers get consistent products and services.

Fair competition:

Products are subject to demand and supply. Customers have a wide range of
products to choose from in the market. Product prices are set by appointed
committees comprising of diverse officers along the value chain. This ensures that
pricing is objectively done, based on competitive practices on price, quality and

customer service.

iti) Respect for competitors

We support some of our competitors in the same business as us by providing the raw
material. We then compete on product formulation and selling. This has helped us

grow the environment in which our core business of pale production and sale is
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(b)

needed for us to thrive, attracting more potential customers, and in turn creating
more opportunities for all the players in the industry.
iv) Product stewardship
In order to safeguard consumer rights and interests, PPCK ONLY sells registered
products. The registration body in Kenya is Pest Control and Products Board which
carries out efficacy and toxicological studies on all products before registration.
Any product sold internationally has to meet the requisite threshold by the
concerned countries regulatory body.
To continuously address any emerging issues on effect of Pyrethrins to humans,
animals and environment, PPCK is a member of the Pyrethrin Joint Venture task
force in the USA. The taskforce carries out and documents continuous studies on
Pyrethrins usage in different spheres. It is the single most comprehensive study
bank on Pyrethrins.
Supply chain and supplier relations
PPCK maintains its good business practice as per the (PPADA Regulation 2020 sec44)

i. Ensuring that all suppliers are prequalified prior to engagement
ii. Procurements of all goods, works and services are procured through open tendering
to ensure the principle of equity, honest and integrity is observed.
iti. Evaluating, appraising and rating suppliers for the purpose of identifying their
competences and capabilities
Honouring Contracts and Payments (PPADA Regulation 2020 sec 39,40,41,42)
i) Ensuring payment within 30 days from the contract date
ii) Constituting contract implementation committee to ensure contract implementation
and post implementation is effectively managed
Further PPCK create a detailed and upto date supplier database containing contacts,
proposals, contracts and capabilities.
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(c)

(d)

Responsible & Ethical Marketing Practices
PPCK is cognizant of the fact that it operates in a society. We strive not to discharge
effluent into the societal systems and carry out CSR programmes when cashflow allows.

The PPCK products are environmentally friendly and so are the by-products. Most
farmers within the county (Nakuru), due to their proximity to the factory benefit from
the by-products which are a cheap way for control of insect pests especially for their
dairy cattle and control of maize worms.

All operations are guided by code of conduct therefore ethical marketing practices are
adhered to. Marketing officers are members of Marketing Society of Kenya which
oversees the marketing profession.

Efforts to Safeguard Consumer Rights and Interests

All consumers deserve products that meet their needs and solves problems for their
woes. PPCK sells products that are registered locally by the PCPB and well researched.
It guarantees product performance and money worth. In addition, pyrethrum is a
natural product which offers safe products for agricultural purposes, public health, and
animal health solutions. There is a research Laboratory which looks into development of
new products for any emerging issue and tests carried out in collaboration with other

institutions to come up with safe and effective products.

Product stewardship - through CSPA in the USA of which PPCK is a member, consumer
complaints and interests are always looked into. In conjunction with Pyrethrum Joint
Venture (PJV) several studies have been undertaken to verify toxicological profile of
Pyrethrin and ensure that consumer products are always safe. PPCK has invested
heavily to the tune of several millions of shillings towards consumer protection in the
USA and E:.:E::-pe.
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5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENTS

As part of the planned activities during this financial year the Company did an expansion and
County. This were community land which are set to assist the surrounding growers with
quality planting materials.

Distribution of free planting materials to growers to the listed counties namely; - Nakuru,
Narok, Baringo, Kisii, Nyamira, Nyandarua, West Pokot

. _-.. z 1,:‘[‘ ]

Planting Material Distribution to Growers in Nakuru Njoro sub-county.
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Planting Materials ready for distribution to Growers

Planting Material Distribution to Growers in Mauche Njoro sub-county
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2021 which show the state of the PPCK.
i. Principal Activities
The principal activities of PPCK are to process and market Pyrethrum and pyrethrum products,

conduct scientific & agronomic research, promote, and facilitate production of high yielding
planting material & quality certified seeds of Pyrethrum.

ii. Results
The results of the entity for the year ended June 30,2021 are set out on page 1.

iii. Dividends
For more than 15years the company has been operating in losses and incurring huge liabilities
and therefore no dividends were paid out to The National Treasury.

iv.  Directors
The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page iv in
accordance with PPCK’s Articles of Association.

v. Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Company in accordance with
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and in accordance with section 35 of the Public Audit
Act 2015 and section 68(2)(k) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012,

By Order of the Board
Name M h"l7 M 6 IJ T:'a‘ Signature @;ﬁ;’* i ':f: i&!z 022,
Secretary to the Board
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES.

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations
Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of the Company, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
the operating results of the Company for that year. The Directors are also required to ensure
that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Company. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Company’s financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company for and as at the
end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2021. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective
throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company; (iii) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Company; (v)
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates

that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors responsibility for the Company’s financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are cf the
opinion that the Company’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
Company’s transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2021, and of the Company’s
financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the
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accounting records maintained for the Company, which have been relied upon in the preparation
of the Company’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial

control.

While the debt burden of the company may appear to suggest otherwise, in acknowledgement of
the potential inherent in the company and the industry, and the anticipated financial assistance
from the government, nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the
Company will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of

this statement.

Approval of the financial statements.

The Company’s financial statements were approved by the Board on L !' Ot 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

/@
ENG. GEORGE WACHIRA MARY MORAA ONTIRI
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD Ag. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.0. Box 30084-00100

Enhancing Accountability NREs:

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON PYRETHRUM PROCESSING COMPANY
OF KENYA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pyrethrum Processing Company
of Kenya set out on pages 1 to 29, which comprise of the statement of financial position

Report of the Auditor-General on Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya for the vear ended 30 June, 2021



as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya as at
30 June, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Unsupported Bank Balance

As disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects bank and cash balance of Kshs.130,343,000.Included in the balance is an amount
of Kshs.33,000 held in CFC Stanbic account. However, the balance was not supported
with certificate of bank balance, cash book and bank reconciliation statements.

In the circumstances, the existence, accuracy and completeness of the bank balance of
Kshs.33,000 included in cash and cash equivalent could not be confirmed.

2. Property, Plant and Equipment

As disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.5,520,651,000. As previously
reported, examination of records revealed the following unsatisfactory matters:

2.1. Land without Legal Ownership Documents

Included in property plant and equipment balance is net book value for land of
Kshs.4,535,050,000 which further includes eighteen (18) parcels of land with a net book
value of Kshs.354,340,000 which are not registered in the name of the Company. Further,
the balance includes Nyandarua/Mawingu farm measuring 35 acres, leased out to
Agricultural Food Authority (AFA). However, documents indicating the terms of the lease
were not provided for audit verification.

2.2, |dle Extraction Plant

Included in the property, plant and equipment is an extraction plant purchased and
installed in the year 2006 at a cost of Kshs.305872,000 that has never been
commissioned. Although the Management has explained that the machine was
purchased in anticipation of an increase in flower deliveries to the factory and that the
plant will be commissioned in future once the industry is revived, evidence to indicate
the steps taken to revive the industry was not provided. Further, technological changes
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and wear and tear are bound to adversely affect the idle machines and may result in the
loss of funds invested in the asset.

2.3. Dilapidated Buildings

Included in the property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.5,520,651,000 are rental
houses and offices with a net book value of Kshs.640,747,000. However, physical
verification revealed that the rental houses and offices were dilapidated.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of property, plant and
equipment, balance of Kshs.5,520,651,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Trade and Other Receivables

As disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects trade and other receivables totalling Kshs.222,905,000. It was however noted that
was a material increase of Kshs.4,433,000 in growers' debtors from Kshs.37,710,000 as
at 30 June, 2020 to Kshs.42,143,000 as at 30 June, 2021. Although the Management
attributed the increase to advances paid to the farmers before delivering their produce, it
lacks a documented credit policy to manage the debts. Further, the balance includes other
debtors amount of Kshs.118,357,000 which further includes rent arrears of
Kshs.29,157,310 that had been outstanding for more than one year. The Management
has not explained any effort taken to recover the rent arrears.

In addition, Management made a provision for bad debts of Kshs.56,241,000. However;
it is not clear how the provision was arrived at as the Company's policy for provision for
bad debts was not disclosed under significant accounting policies.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the receivables
balance of Kshs.222,905,000 could not be confirmed.

4. Long Outstanding Trade Payables and Provisions

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.1,300,741,000 as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. Included in the
balance is trade payables and provisions amount of Kshs.998,162,000 which further
includes long outstanding unremitted PAYE deductions of Kshs.155,727,146 and other
salary clearances of Kshs.13,262,968.Unremitted PAYE continue attracting interest and
penalties in line with the provisions of Section 37 (2) of the Income Tax Act Cap 470 of
the Laws of Kenya. The balance also includes other payables to Agriculture and Food
Authority of Kshs.223,127,000, Sugar Directorate of Kshs.41,493,000 and Tea
Directorate of Kshs.16,030,000. Further, the Company has not made any provision for
penalties and interest chargeable as a result of failure to remit the deductions to the
relevant authorities on time.

In the circumstances, failure to meet obligations relating to trade and other payables
exposes the Company to litigations and increased costs of penalties and interest.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIls). | am independent of the Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya
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Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report for 2019/2020 financial year, several issues were raised and which
have remained unresolved. However, contrary to the guidelines and templates prescribed
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board template for Public Sector Entities
reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Framework, the
Management did not attach an appendix to the financial statements indicating the action
taken on the auditor's recommendations.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the chairman's
report, directors’ report, the statement of corporate governance, management
discussions and analysis, statement of environmental and sustainability reporting,
corporate social responsibility statement and the statement of directors' responsibilities.

The other information does not include the financial statements and my auditor's report
thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.
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Basis for Conclusion

Non-Compliance with the Law on Ethnic Composition

Review of the Company employees' ethnic composition as at 30 June, 2021 revealed that
a single ethnic community had a 38% representation in the staff composition of the
Company. This is contrary to Section 7(2) of National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008
which stipulates that, “No public establishment shall have more than one third of its staff
from the same ethnic community.”

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of Human Resource Policy

Review of records revealed that the Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya had not
developed new human resource policy but relied on the human resource policy developed
in the year 2010 of the defunct Pyrethrum Board of Kenya.

In the circumstances, Management may not be able to prepare and manage its human
resource needs in a changing business environment or successfully achieve its core

mandate.
2. Lack of Approved ICT Strategic and Disaster Recovery Plans

Review of the Company's information technology systems revealed that it uses an
accounting software to manage its accounting functions. However, the operating system
and accounting software are outdated and user support from the patent holders of both
operating system and accounting software ceased in the years 2002 and 2006
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respectively. Further, the Company did not have approved ICT Strategic and Disaster
Recovery Plans. Its ICT interventions were therefore not aligned with the Company’s
strategic needs.

In the circumstances, the Company may be exposed to risk of errors, fraud and the loss
of data confidentiality, integrity and availability.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standard
requires that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Kenyan Company's Act, | report based on my audit, that:

() | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

(ii) In my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from the examination of those records; and,

(i) The Company's financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
Kenyan's Companies Act and for maintaining effective internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Company's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPAN a <CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

MNairobi

01 September, 2022
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PYRETHRUM PROCESSING COMPANY OF KENYA
ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2021.

JUNE JUNE
NOTE 2021 2020
REVENUES Kshs Kshs
‘000" ‘000
Sales 5 44,292 3,950 |
Cost of Sales 6 41,732 {16,956)
GROSS SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,560 13,006)
Grants from National Government 7 397,000 162,000
Other Income 8 26,855 20,569
Differed Pyrethrin Loss (45,264) (45,264)
Other Gains/ Losses 14 2,321 183
TOTAL REVENUES 383,472 124116
OPERATIING EXPENSES
Administration Costs 9(a) (334,775) (305,132)
Selling & Distribution costs 10 (5,822) (2,088)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 340,59 (307,220)

OPERATING SURPLUS/ DEFICIT 42,875 (183,104)



o e
4
-
7

EMENT OF FINANCIA 30T™H E 2021

NOTE 2021 2020
ASSETS Kshs Kshs
Non-current Assets ‘000 ‘0007
Property, plant and equipment 11 5,520,651 5,608,193
Intangible assets 12 525,000 525,000
Fixed Interest investments (Euro bank Ltd) 20 150,000 150,000
Deferred Pyrethrin costs 22 724,225 769,489
Biological Assets 14 7474 5153
Total Non-Current Assets 6,927,350 7,057,835
Current Assets
Inventories 13 214,21 216,343
Trade and Other receivables 15 222,905 217,714
Bank and Cash balances 16 130,343 3,185
Total Current Assets 567,469 437,243
TOTAL ASSETS 7,494,819 7,495,077
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
PBK Stock units 23 32,891 32,891
Levy fund 24 96 893
Accumulated Capital Fund 318,158 318,158
General Reserve (71,758) (114,634)
Revaluation reserve 5,764,651 5,764,691
Capital and Reserves 6,044,078 6,001,199

Capital and Reserves
Non-current Liabilities

Long Term Provision (Euro Bank Ltd) 20 150,000 150,000

Total Non-current Liabilities 150,000 150,000

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 18 1,300,741 1,343,878

Total Current Liabilities 1,300,741 1,343,878

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES M;Lg 7,495,077
The Financial Statements were Approved by:the Board on.. .| ]JZUEZ and signed
on its behalf by: _]—II—_

M S /"’é%/

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FINANCE MANAGER CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
MARY MORAA ONTIRL CPA EDWARD OCHELE
ICPAK MXN O: 16703
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IYRETHRLUAM PROWESSIN COMDPANY () K
UAl REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR FHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2021

NOTE

2021 2020
Kshs Kshs
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘000’ ‘000’
19 129,230 611
Cash generated From Operations
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of P.P & E it (2.075) (340)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (e (40)
Cash flows from financing activities
Levy fund 3 6
Net cash flows used in financing activities 3 6
127,159 277
Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,185 2,909
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 130,343 3185
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya Ltd entity is established by and derives its
authority and accountability from Crop Act 2013. The entity is wholly owned by the
Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity’s principal activity is to Process
and market Pyrethrum and Products, conduct scientific & Agronomic research, Promote, and
facilitate production of high yielding planting material & quality certified seeds of Pyrethrum.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the
statement of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company of

Kenya's accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (Kshs'000).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
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PYRETHRUM PROCESSING COMPANY O KENYA
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FOR TTHE YEAR ENDYED JUNLE 30, 2021

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at the fair value of consideration received or
expected to be received in the ordinary course of PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company
of Kenya activities, net of value-added tax (VAT), where applicable, and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya

activities as described below.

i)  Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised in the year in which the
PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya delivers products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the producis and collectability of the related receivables is

reasonably assured.

ii) Grants from National Government are recognised in the year in which Pyrethrum
Processing Company of Kenya receives such Grants. Recurrent grants are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are
recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired using

such funds.

iiij) Rental income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues using the effective
lease agreements.

iv) Other income is recognised as it accrues.

B Property, Plant and Equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The Assets of the company were last revalued in June 2018 and this has formed the new

basis of depreciation of the assets.

12
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The revaluation was done by Ebony Estates. Ltd. Certain categories of property, plant and
equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts, being their fair value at the date
of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Where re-measurement at re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset category are

re-valued through periodic valuations carried out by independent external valuers.

Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other

comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of

the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are

charged to profit or loss in the income statement.

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items and

are recognised in profit or loss in the income statement.

Depreciation and impairment of property, Plant, and equipment

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress
relates mainly to the costs of ongoing but incomplete works the new extraction plant and
other civil works and installations.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use are:

Buildings and civil works 250% P.A
Plant, & Machinery 12.50% P.A
Motor vehicles including motor cycles 25% P.A
Computers and related equipment 30% P.A
Office Equipment, furniture & Fittings 12.50% P.A

Licenses, Registrations, Patents, Brands, trademarks, and data relating to research studies
are held in perpetuity indefinite useful life hence being revalued after a period of time.
Licenses, Registrations, Patents, Brands, trademarks, and data relating to research studies

13
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are held in perpetuity indefinite useful life hence being revalued after a period of time.
Licenses, Registrations, Patents, Brands, trademarks, and data relating to research studies
are held in perpetuity indefinite useful life hence being revalued after a period of time,
A full year's depreciation charge is recognised in the year of asset purchase and no
depreciation charge is recognized in the year of asset disposal.
Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount.

D  Intangible assets
Intangible assets include Licenses, Registrations, Patents, Brands, trademarks, and data
relating to PPCK- Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya.

E  Amortisation and impairment of Intangible assets

Licenses, Registrations, Patents, Brands, trademarks, and research data relating to research
studies are held in perpetuity indefinite useful life hence being revalued after a period of
time.
F Inventories.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of dry pyrethrum
flowers, grist, extracts and end use products comprise direct materials cost and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads and other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of engineering
spares and accessories are calculated using weighted average method. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of disposal.

G  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at fair values less allowances for any
uncollectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at
the year end. Bad debts are written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

14
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H

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the various commercial
banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash
and cash equivalents also include short term cash Imprests and advances to authorised
public officers which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.
Borrowings

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net
of issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance
charges, including premiums payable of settlement or redemption are accounted for on
accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the
construction of a project is capitalised as part of the cost of the project.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost, which
is measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in
respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the PPCK - Pyrethrum Processing
Company of Kenya or not, less any payments made to the suppliers.

Retirement benefit obligations

The former Pyrethrum Board of Kenya was operating a defined contribution scheme for all
full-time employees, Pyrethrum Board of Kenya Staff Superannuation scheme which was
wounded up on 1% December 2016 and a liquidator was appointed. For the current staff the

15
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company has identified a new scheme under ICEA Lion Group of which contributions are
being remitted as required by the Retirement Benefits Authority.

The company also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is
a defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The
company's obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from
time to time and is currently at Kshs.200 per employee per month.

L Provision for staff leave pay

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are recognised as they accrue to the employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

M. Exchange rate differences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in which the PPCK - Pyretlrum Processing Company of Kenya operates, Kenya
Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies during the year/period are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Any foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

profit or loss.

N. Budget information

The original budget for FY 2020-2021 was approved by the National Assembly Subsequent
revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance
with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are
added to the uriﬁinal budget by the Pyrethrum Processing Company upon receiving the
respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

The Pyrethrum Processing Company budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual
income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are

prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the
16
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statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The
amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison
of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is
then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to
the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for
differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the
financial statements and the approved budget.

0. Comparative figures

In accordance with IAS 8 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, comparative information in
respect of the previous period (ie., 2019-2020) for all amounts reported in the financial

statements has been disclosed.

P. Subsequent events

Pyrethrum Processing Company of Kenya undertook valuation of its assets which has a
significant impact on financial year ended June 30, 2019.

Q. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit risk and
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of future rates and prices and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Foreign exchange risk is a financial risk that exists when a financial transaction is
denominated in a currency other than that of the base currency of the company. The risk is
that there may be an adverse movement in the exchange rate of the denomination currency
in relation to the base currency before the date when the transaction is completed.

The Company therefore has foreign currency accounts i.e. Euro and Dollar accounts which
are the main currencies used in transactions. This enables holding of the currency until the

exchange rates are favourable.
17
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Legal risk is the risk of loss to an institution which is primarily caused by: - (a) a defective
transaction; or (b) a claim (including a defence to a claim or a counterclaim) being made or
some other event occurring which results in a Lability for the institution or other loss (for
example, as a result of the termination of a contract) or; (c) failing to take appropriate
measures to protect assets (for example, intellectual property) owned by the institution; or
(d) change in law.

The Company has several court awards against it and other cases that are pending in court.
To minimise this risk, the Company made a provision in its annual 2020-21 budget to cater

for legal expenses.

Commodity risk

Refers to the uncertainties of future market values and of the size of the future income,
caused by the fluctuation in the prices of commodities i.e., Risk arising out of adverse
movements in the world prices, exchange rates, basis between local and world prices.

The Company is focusing on the diversification of products and production of end use
products that are to be sold in the local market. This would help reduce risks that are
caused by fluctuations in the world prices of its products.

18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2020-2021 2019-2020

Kshs Kshs
‘000 ‘000
5 REVENUE
Powder local - 20
O.R Extracts Local " A
Pale Exports 25% 29,036 -
Pale Local 25% 10,500 1,060
Marc Local 2,311 1,630
Product Development General 2445 1,238
TOTAL 44,292 3950
The revenue generated for the period under review was from processing of 50metric tonnes
of dry pyrethrum flowers.
6 COSTS OF SALES
Opening inventories 141,324 107,073
Add: Manufacturing costs
. 14,86
Purchase of Pyrethrin 11,405 5
Processing and refining costs 18,945 17,782
Purchase of Oleoresin (OR) - 18,560
Total 171,674 153;;
Less: Closing inventories (129,942) (141,324)
Cost of sales 41,732 16,956
7. GRANTS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
Recurrent grants received 332,000 132,000
Capital grants received 65,000 30,000

397,000 162,000

PPCK was allocated Ksh130M Capital grants in the FY 2020/21 Budget, for the Period
under review the company received 65M and the balance was received in the FY 2021/22

19



2020-2021 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Analysis of Grant Received during the Year 2020/2021
recogizedto | defered | AmouDt
Name of the Entity Statement of Stder f&cng'lﬂsed Total Grant income during
sending the grant Comprehensive | deferred ;2 ::pital the year.
Income income )
2020-2021 2019-2020
KShs KShs KShs Kshs KShs
Ministry of
Agriculture State
Department of 397,000 - - 397,000 162,000
Crops
Development
Total 397,000 - - 397,000 162,000
8. OTHER INCOME
Rent 17,659 18,628
Farms 2,833 1,434
Others (Sale of seeds, Drying Charges etc.) 6,363 507
26855 20569
9.(a) ADMINISTRATION COSTS
Staff Costs (Note 8b) 143,027 142,220
Electricity and Water 247 70
Maintenance 7113 3,421
Security 981 974
Travelling and Subsistence 14,683 7,190
Director’s Emoluments 1,032 -
Exgratia 5817 5434
Gratuity 9,827 1,766
Auditors’ Remuneration 580 580
Rent, Rates 4,883 39,569
Insurance 2,261 -
Depreciation 89,617 89,589
Entomology expenses 84 45
Legal fees & Court Awards 7,142 2,076
Other operating Expenses 47481 12,198
Total 34775 305132
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PYRETHRUM PROCESSING COMPANY OF KENYA

NUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021.
2020-2021 2019- 2020
Kshs Kshs
!mﬂ' fﬂw
9(b) STAFF COSTS
Salaries for Permanent & Pensionable employees 114,336 119,161
Salaries Staff on Contract 25,247 21,561
Overtime Hrs 3444 1,498
143027 142,220
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Permanent Employees -Management 51 55
Permanent Employees- Unionisable 105 109
Temporary and Contracted Employees 83 81
237, 245
10. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Shows & Exhibitions 58 928

Sales Promotions - 289

Other selling and Distribution costs 5,147 871

Distributions 617 -

5,822 2088
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST

Kshs"000"

Kﬁhﬁ"m"

At July 1

525,000

525,000

Additions

Disposals

At June 30

525,000

525,000

REVALUATION

At July 1

Charge for the year

-

Loss on Valuation

Impairment loss

Adjustment

At June 30

525,000

525,000

NET BOOK VALUE

These are costs relating to Registrations/Licenses and studies undertaken on impact of
pyrethrum on the environment and humans. The registrations/licenses and studies are
mandatory as they form the basis for pyrethrum trade in the international markets. The major
markets for PPCK are in America and Europe, hence the need to maintain these market segments
through sustained registrations. The benefits from these intangible assets shall be realised over
an indefinite period and have therefore not been amortised.

13. INVENTORIES

Dry Pyrethrum flowers
Pyrethrum grist & powder
Pymarc

Crude pyrethrum extract (OR)
Pale Pyrethrum extract

End use products

Other pyrethrum products
Sub-total -

Engineering spares & accessories
TOTAL

23

2020-2021
Kshs
“0p0”
1,979
15
3
5,445
15,008
3,324
104,168
129,942
84,279
214,221

2019- 2020
Kshs
“000”
3
15
672
8,849
23,859
3,758
104,168
141,324
75,019
216,343
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2020-2021 2019-2020

Kshs Kshs
‘000’ ‘000
14. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Livestock 634 360
Tea Bushes 6,840 _4793
7474 3,153

During the period under review there was a gain in fair value of biological assets
amounting to Kshs. 2,321,000 as per the valuation report. The valuation of biological
assets was carried out by County Government of Nakuru Ministry of Agriculture
Livestock & Fisheries and report issued for the purpose of incorporating in the current

year Financial Statements’ FY 2020/2021.

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 61,853 61,853
Kenya power deposit 2,500 2,500
Abortive Nairobi Show 7,180 7,180
Deposit held by courts 4,454 4,454
Growers’ debtors 42,143 37,710
Staff debts 42,659 42,652
Other debtors 118,357 117,606
Gross trade and other Receivables 279,146 273,955
Provision for bad and doubtful receivables 56,241)  (56,241)
Net trade and other receivables 222,905 217,714
16 (a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Float 59 32
Rent Account 3,626 324
Operation Account 4450 2,770
Growers Account 122,016 2
Assets Disposal Account 4 9
Foreign Account 110 12
CFC Stanbic Account 33 33
Other Bank Account 45 3
130,343 3,185
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16 (b) Detailed analysis of the Cash & Cash Equivalents

Kenya Commercial bank Account number Kshs Kshs

a) Current account ‘000" ‘000"
Rent Account 1153031779 3,626 324
Growers Account 1153031493 122,016 2
Asset Disposal Account 1153031930 4 9
USD Account 1153032171 105 4
EUR Account 1153032422 5 8
Operation Account 1153031337 4450 2,770
Other bank Account 104 35
Other Bank Account

Cfc Stanbic Bank Account 014/00/300349/01 33 33
Sub- Total 130,343 3,185

17. REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of certain items of property, plant and
equipment which was done in June 2018 value at Kshs. 5,764,691. As indicated in the
Statement of Changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer of excess depreciation.
Revaluation surpluses are not distributable.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Kshs Kshs
‘o0’ ‘000"

Trade Payables and Provisions 998,162 1,041,575

Payable to AFA HQ 223,127 223,127

Payable to Sugar Directorate (AFA) 41493 41,493

Payables to Tea Directorate (AFA) 16,030 16,030

Amounts due to Growers 21,929 21,653
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FOIR

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3, 2021

19.

20.

21.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 2020-2021  2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to ‘000’ ‘000
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Operating profit/ (loss) 42,875  (183,101)
Depreciation 89,617 89,588
Differed Pyrethrin Loss 45,264 45,264
Loss/ (Gains) from changes in fair value of biological assets (2321) 183
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 175,435 (48,066)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 2,122 (35,500)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and Other Receivables (5,191) (25,266)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payable (43,137) 484,670
Other Liabilities - (375,227)
Cash generated from/ (used in) Operations 129,230 611
INVESTMENT IN EURO BANK

The Company invested Kshs.150 million in Euro Bank Limited on 17* October 2001. Euro
Bank collapsed on 20th February 2003 without significant assets. The Company made a
provision in the year 2002/2003 and is awaiting the outcome of the case.

INCORPORATION.

The entity is a Company under State Corporation Agriculture and Food Authority (AFA)
formed under the AFA Act, 2013 and is domiciled in Kenya.

DEFERRED PYRETHRINS COSTS. |

These costs relate to unaccounted for Pyrethrin's received in between 1999-2003 valued at
Kshs. 1,357,922,110/=. The Pyrethrum Act Cap 340 (now repealed) Section 18 provides
that the total amount realised from the operations of the Company ought to be paid based
on performance and surplus or losses passed to the growers. Between the years 1999-
2003, trade stocks were held mainly in Crude Pyrethrum Extract (OR). The Pyrethrin’s
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reconciliation was then impossible. It was realised in the year 2005/2006 that quite
substantial quantities of Pyrethrin’s of 180,859.71 kg Pys valued at Kshs. 1,357,922,110/ =
could not be accounted for. Growers had therefore been paid an element that should have
been adjusted to reflect the process losses. The necessary adjustment for the prior period
error was therefore made in the financial statements to reflect a fair view of the financial
statements. The Company noted the losses requested for a thorough investigation. They
recommended for the adjustment of the prior period error to reflect the correct status in
the books of account thereby accommodating the amount of Kshs. 1,357,922,110/= in the
general reserve account which will be amortised over a period of 30 years starting
financial

year 2007/2008.For the current year of reporting the loss has been treated in the statement

of comprehensive incomes.

JUNE JUNE
2020-2021  2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
- ‘000" ‘000’
Balance at beginning of the year 769,489 814,753
Write off for the year 45,264 45,264
Balance at end of the year 724,225 769,489

23. PBK STOCK UNITS ISSUED
In return for levy paid by pyrethrum growers the Company issues one unit of stock to

each licensed grower for every amount of twenty shillings paid to it by way of levy, for
this Financial Year the stock units amount to Kshs 32,891,260.00.

24. LEVYFUND
Under the provisions of the Pyrethrum Act the Minister of Agriculture imposed a levy on

all pyrethrum grown or cultivated in Kenya. The levy is at the rate of 6.6 cents per
kilogram of dry pyrethrum flowers delivered to the Company. The levy valued at Kshs
95,940.00 FY 2020/21 is held as fund pending issuance of PPCK units thereof.
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25.

PYRETHRUM BOARD OF KENYA STAFF SUPERANNUATION SCHEME.
There was a court process of which appointed the liquidator through the Office of AG
Pyrethrum Board of Kenya superannuation scheme was wound up on 1% December 2016

and a liquidator was appointed. Actuarial valuation of the scheme was undertaken which
currently stands at Kshs 2.02Billion.

RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the financial year 2020-21, the company discovered some errors in the financial
statements for the year 2019-20 which warranted adjustment in order to reflect a fair
presentation of the financial statements of PPCK. In accordance with IAS 8; “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors “ comparative figures were
therefore restated in order to correct material errors and estimates that were identified
after the financial statements were authorised for issue. These restated balances relating to

prior year adjustments includes; -

a) Administration Costs
The comparative figure of Kshs. (305,129,000) was adjusted to Kshs. (305,132,000) as per

the financial statements due to changes in various ledgers that resulted from accrued
expenses that had not been captured in the system of Ksh. (3,000).

Particulars Certified amount | Adjustment | Restated amount
(Kshs.‘000) | (Kshs. ‘000") (Kshs. “000")
Administration costs 305,129 3 305,132
b) Inventories

The comparative figure of Kshs. (216,346,000) was adjusted to Kshs. (216,344,000) as per
the financial statements due to changes in various ledgers that resulted from accrued
expenses that had not been captured in the ledgers of Ksh. 3,000.

Particulars Certified amount | Adjustment Restated amount
(Kshs. ‘000) (Kshs. ‘000") (Kshs. ‘000)
Inventories 216,346 3 216,343
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c) General Reserve

The comparative figure of Ksh. 114,631,000 as per the records was adjusted to Kshs.
144,634,000 as per the financial statements due to changes in various ledgers which
reduced the general reserve by Kshs (3,000).

Particulars Certified amount | Adjustment Restated amount
(Kshs. ‘000") (Kshs. ‘000") (Kshs. ‘000")
General Reserve 114,631 3 114,634
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APPENDIX 1: INTER ENTITY TRANSFERS FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021

!EVELDPMENT GRANTS

BANK STATEMENT
DATE AMOUNT(KSHS)
o
10/09/2020 65,000
Sub-Totals 65,000
ECCURENT GRANTS
20/08/2020 11,000
10/09/2020 11,000
05/10,/2020 11,000
12/11/2020 33,000
09/02/2021 33,000
05/05/2021 200,000
18/05/2021 33,000
Sub-Totals 332,000
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APPENDIX 2: END YEAR REVIEW CHECKLIST,

Ref. | Ensure the following for the financial statements prepared for the year Ended 30t Comment

June 2021

1 Financial Statements

IFRS or IPSAS Accrual as prescribed by the PSASB.

i. Financials statements are prepared using the applicable reporting framework, Complied

2 Trial Balance

statements.

i. The trial balance is balancing and has been used to prepare the latest financial Complied

ii. All known adjustments effected before running the final trial balance

Complied

3 General Ledgers

i. For all general ledgers cut-off procedures have been observed. Complied

ii. Financial Statement items should be recognized in the relevant accounting period.
Complied
iii. Any suspense account should be cleared. Complied

4 Accounting Policies
i. Accounting policies adopted by the entity are in line with the entity's reporting
finance manual and comply with the respective adopted reporting framework

Complied

ii. Only relevant accounting policies should be included in the financial statements

5 Cash and cash equivalent: Bank balance
i. Ensure that bank reconciliations for the whole year have been prepared, reviewed
and approved as per the organization's manual.

ii. Ensure that the bank reconciliation does not include invalid reconciling items such as
stale checks or bank charges that should be recorded as expenses in the general

ledger

iii. Cash balance

Complied

iv. Carry out a cash count ensuring that entity personnel independent from the one in
charge of cash is present and signs off on the petty cash certificate.

Complied

v. Ensure that the petty cash reconciliation opening balance agree to the previous cash
count and the closing balance agrees to the petty cash certificate at the end of the

fiscal period

Complied
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]

Investments: Short term deposits

i. Check and ensure that all deposits have certificates and have been recorded in the
system

ii. Ensure the investments schedule clearly shows the amount of principal, no. of
days held, interest earned at the earlier of date of maturity or period end.

ili.  Ensure that the interest income eamed is correctly recorded in the general
ledger

iv. Ensure that the accrued interest at the end of the year is accurately computed
and recorded

v. Review the investment schedule and ensure that all computations have
done

N/A

Receivables
i. Ensure that there is an aged receivables listing that agrees to the general ledger/
trial balance

ii. Ensure that all provisions made are appropriately approved and are as per
entity’s policy

available

iv. Document credit risk management for the receivables as at the end of closing
period.

Complied

Inventories

i. Ensure that an inventory count is conducted and the results match what is
recorded in the general ledger/ trial balance

Complied

ii. Ensure that all variances arising from the result above are well explained

N/A

iii. Ensure that any impairments in value are accurately computed and presented in
the trial balance

N/A

Property plant and equipment & Intangible assets
i. Ensure the fixed assets register is up to date and agrees with the fixed asset
movement and eventually to the general ledger / trial balance

ii. Conduct a verification exercise and ensure that all assets that are impaired are
provided for;

Complied

iii. Ensure all assets that are being held as collateral for the entity borrowing are|
clearly identified and documented in the fixed asset file

N/A

iv. Update the list of fully depreciated asset and their condition as at the end of the
reporting period

N/A

v. Any work in progress included under PPE should be detailed and confirmed that
indeed it was not complete as at the end of fiscal year

N/A

vi.  Confirm adequacy of insurance for all the assets held Complied
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vii. Prepare a fixed asset movement schedule

Complied

viii.  Ensure that the movement schedule agrees to the following;

Complied

ix. The opening balances on both cost and accumulated depreciation agrees to the
prior year signed financial statements

x. The depreciation charge for the year agrees to the depreciation in the statement of
financial performance

xi. The net book value agrees to the amount disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position

Complied

10

Biological assets
i.  Perform a count at the end of the period

ii. Ensure that the fair value is computed accurately and that all assumptions are well
documented

iii. Ensure that the fair value adjustments have been accurately passed to reflect the
change in valuation in the statement of Financial Performance

Complied

11

Accounts payable: Trade payables
i. Obtain the aged payable listing and ensure that they agree to the general ledger

Complied

ii. Review all unpaid invoices and ensure that all expenses relating to the fiscal year
are accrued accurately

Complied

iii. Ensure any long outstanding payables have been written off after appropriate
approval has been obtained

In Progress

Accounts payable: Differed Income
i. Ensure that the differed income has been adjusted correctly having recognized
income that relate to the current fiscal ear

ii. Ensure that there is clear documentation and support for classifying the amount as
differed income

N/A

Accounts payable: Unexpended Grants
i. Prepare the unexpended grants movement schedule

ii. Ensure that the opening balances agree to the prior year audited financial
statements

iii. Ensure that the income and expenditure are fully supported and agree to what
was received in the current year

N/A
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12

Funds/ Reserves
i. Ensure that the amount in the trial balance agrees to the prior year audited

financial statements

ii. Prepare a movement incorporating any changes in the year and maintain the
accuracy of the figure

Complied

13

Revenue

i. Ensure that all revenue schedules are prepared disclosing the date the income wag Complied

received, the source, cheque number, etc.

ii. Ensure that the key prices schedules of all goods/ services sold by the entity is

ilabl

e Complied

iii. Ensure that all discounts awarded during the year are well supported and relevant

ilabl

approvals are available Complied
iv.  Ensure that the most revised copy of rental agreements is available Complied

v. Ensure that any grants received from donors are well recorded ;
(restricted/ unrestricted) as per the donor agreemenits | N/A

vi. Ensure transfer from MDA are correctly classified as recurrent and development
and are disclosed appropriately

vii. Transfer from MDAs MUST agree with the MDA records as at the end of reporting
period
|

viii. Ensure revenue recognition as per the accounting policies and the respective
financial reporting framework

Complied

14

Expenditure
i. Ensure that all supporting documentation of expenditure are filed in an orderly

manner

ii. Ensure that all expenses are recorded including accruals made at the end of the
year

Complied

iii. Ensure that expenditure reports sent to donor are also available and that they
agree to what is in the trial balance within any difference being explained

N/A

15,

Inter-entity balances
i. Liaise with the ministry at lease quarterly to reconcile the amounts received from|

what was dispatched to ensure accuracy of the figures

ii. Ensure that the amounts received are clearly differentiated between recurrent
and development and that a detailed schedule of when the funds was received
and from who

Complied
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iii. Ensure that any funds received in the subsequent month that relate to the year
that is coming to an end are accrued for accurately and reported in the year
under review

N/A

iv. Ensure that there is a detailed disclosure for the inter entity balances in the

financial statements for ease of reconciliation with amount disclosed by the Complied

ministry.

16

Disclosures
i. Ensure that all amounts disclosed in the financial statements are fully supported
by notes and that the amounts on the face of the financials agree to the amounts

disclosed in the notes Complied

ii. Ensure that the inter entity notes clearly indicates funds meant for recurrent

expenditure and funds meant for development expenditure with a detailed | Complied

breakdown of when the funds were received and from which ministry

iii. Ensure that all rental agreement is available and support the operating lease

disclosure Complied

iv. Ensure that all donor agreements are available and prepare the grant movement
schedule for restricted grants ensuring that the opening balances agrees to the
prior year signed financial statements, income received agrees to the bank
statement and receipts issued and the income recognized agrees to the

expenditure spent duringg the period under review

N/A

v. Prepare IFRS7/IPSAS 30 disclosures ensuring that all amounts disclosed agree to
the trial balance and the draft financial statements

Complied

vi. Ensure that any related party balances are disclosed separately with clear
descriptions included in the notes to ensure understandability to the users of the
financial statements

N/A

vii. Ensure that subsequent events that may affect the information disclosed in the
financial statements are disclosed with clear descriptions and provisions made if
necessary.

N/A

viii. Review any litigation matters that are pending in court and liaise with your legal
representative to ensure that all contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
financial statements with any provisions being made in the payables

Complied

ix. Ensure that the notes to cash clearly indicates the banks where the cash is being
held for both cash at bank and any short- and long-term deposits

Complied

17

Donor Funded projects
i. Ensure all donor funded projects are taken stock of; i.e., determining the projects|

that started during the year, continuing and closed projects.
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ii. Determine based on the donor agreement whether a separate financial statement
is required for the project

iii. Prepare project financial statements based on the requirements stipulated in the
government Grant Agreement
iv. Ensure actual receipts and payments are compared with the budget and Complied
explanation for variation documented

v. Ensure compliance with donor agreement terms and conditions and summarizej
issues of non- compliance
vi. The Projects Financial Statements should be prepared in accordance either IPSAS
Cash basis template issued by the PSASB of Kenya as included in the National
Treasury Website
vii. Where a separate bank account is maintained for the project, ensure a
reconciliation for the bank and cash balances as at the end of reporting period N/A

viii. Before submission of the projects financial statement to OAG with a copy to COB
and national treasury, ensure internal reviews are carried out.

ix. Ensure the donor confirms funds transferred and any commitments from them
and if there were costs which were paid by the donor on behalf of the entity,
they should also be confirmed

x. A listing of assets acquired using donor funds but expensed should also be
maintained and the status of such assets as at the end of reporting period.

Name of chief finance officer or any other officer reviewing:

- u-»:;"és,_,
Date of review: _ A{T\} ?‘;L
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